MINUTES
of the
COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
OCTOBER 6, 2006
THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF
HAWAII, WAS HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, KALANA 0 MAUI BUILDING,
WAILUKU, HAWAII, ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2006, BEGINNING AT 9:06 A.M., WITH
CHAIR G. RIKI HOKAMA PRESIDING.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of 6 October 2006 is
now in session.
Mr. Clerk, please call the roll.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS MICHELLE ANDERSON, JO ANNE
JOHNSON, DAIN P. KANE, DENNIS A. MATEO, MICHAEL J.
MOLINA, JOSEPH PONTANILLA, CHARMAINE TAVARES,
VICE-CHAIR ROBERT CARROLL, AND CHAIR G. RIKI
HOKAMA.
EXCUSED: NONE.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK JEFFREY T. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman, all nine members are
present and we have a quorum.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Clerk.
Ladies and Gentlemen, this morning we have our opening remarks from our
colleague of South Maui district, Ms. Anderson.

OPENING REMARKS
The opening remarks were offered by Councilmember Anderson.
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PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Members of the Council, and others in attendance, rose and recited the

Pledge of Allegiance.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Once again, thank you, Ms. Anderson, for your comments.
Mr. Clerk, let us proceed with the agenda.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with testimony on ceremonial
resolutions, we have received no requests.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This morning we have two listed ceremonial resolutions. Is there anyone
wishing to give testimony on either of our two ceremonial resolutions, please make
yourself known and we will be happy to provide you with an opportunity to speak.
Seeing no--oh, we do have a lady coming forward. If you come forward, you can
start speaking. We'll take care of the required paperwork after you're done. Please
state your name for the record, and if you are representing an organization, state that
organization. You have three minutes to share your thoughts with us.

TESTIMONY ON CEREMONIAL RESOLUTIONS
MS. EILEEN MIRANDA:
Okay. Good morning, Chairman Hokama and the rest of the Council.
I am Eileen Miranda. Whew, I'm so nervous. I work at Hale Mahaolu, and I'm Roy's
secretary.
We just wanted to come here today to recognize Roy for his accomplishments, and
this is not a thing that Mr. Katsuda likes to do. But we just wanted to come here to
recognize him. And so--oh, I'm so nervous.
This is part of his staff; and board member, our President is here, Jean Brooks; and,
and part of his family--his wife Betty is here. And that's--anyone else want to say
anything?
Congratulations, Roy. We love you. Keep up the good work.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else would like to speak?

MS. SANDY FREEMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF MAUI ADULT DAY CARE CENTER:
Oh, I'm like Eileen. This is very hard to do. And as we were sitting there, I think we
all kind of, we really didn't want to do it, but we did want to do it, you know.
But it's hard to really put into words what Roy has done for the community, and he's
done it in this quiet, unassuming, soft way that you don't even realize what he is
doing.
And I know one day we were talking and he said, you know, he said, "I'm certainly
not a visionary or an idea person." And the more I thought about it, I don't always
disagree with him, but I certainly did on that because if you stop to think about it, Roy
listens to the community, analyzes what the needs are in that elder community and,
and the younger community as well; and then he puts all the thoughts together,
analyzes it. But he goes beyond just being a visionary. He gets something done.
And you can see that by the llima Project that has so much helped us, Maui Adult
Day Care, to meet our vision and our mission. And now with the new Kihei coming
up, you talk about the true aging in place, he's, I think the, what do you call it? Not a
grandfather of it, but he certainly is an exemplary aspect of it. And, as you know, that
will be from affordable housing through senior center and Maui Adult Day Care, so as
people progress. But it goes beyond just the housing, it, he has the service of
personal care, of meals, counseling, and for housing. I mean the list could go on and
on.
So, Roy, you're, you are a visionary; but, you also walk the talk, you get it done. So
we thank you very much. And Maui Adult Day Care couldn't be doing what they're
doing without you. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Freeman, state your name for the record; and if you are
representing your organization, please.
MS. FREEMAN: Yes. Sandy Freeman, Executive Director of Maui Adult Day Care.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
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MS. AUDREY ROCHA REED, J. WALTER CAMERON CENTER AND THE SPECIAL FAIR
DAY FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES:
Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of the County Council.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. ROCHA REED: Good morning, Roy. I got up early for you.
It's unusual that the J. Walter Cameron Center would be here other than to ask for
money, but today we're here for a better purpose.
I've been with Cameron Center almost twenty-five years; and Roy Katsuda has been
an advisor, a mentor, a shoulder to cry on, an advisor more than anything, a helper, a
supporter. Not only has he been with me since the very first Special Fair Day for
Persons with Disabilities--and we just celebrated the seventeenth such event. Roy
has been there every year.
And I'd like to comment on something else. Every year, Hale Mahaolu put--holds a
fundraiser. The staff does this and they select charities in the community to support.
They have been a very strong supporter of the Special Fair. I believe for the past
eleven years, they have donated a thousand dollars each year to the Special Fair
Day.
Someone once said to me, "Well, what's going to happen when you go?" I said as
long as the Special Fair Day does not receive government funds and is supported by
the community, it's going to continue." And that's thanks to people like Roy who
inspires his employees.
I have only a few minutes left. I'd like to tell you what else he has done. Very quietly,
of course everybody knows about the senior housing he builds and housing for
persons with disabilities, but Roy Katsuda really honored the community by agreeing
to serve on the Board of Heritage Hall, which is the joint project by the Maui Puerto
Rican Association and the Portuguese Association of Maui to build a community
center with cultural resource centers in Paia. Roy is our independent; he is our
advisor, our guide; and, again, a shoulder that we can lean on.
And it's, it's truly an honor to be able to speak about him to all of you who may not
know the other little things he does in the community that means so much to all of us.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
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MS. ROCHA REED: Roy, I actually brought you a lei.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Rocha Reed.

MR. RON OKAMURA, COMPLEX AREA SUPERINTENDENT, STATE DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION:
Good morning, Chairman Hokama and fellow County Councilmembers.
My name is Ron Okamura. I'm the Complex Area Superintendent for the rural areas
of Maui which we, you know, coin the "canoe district."
And I just want to thank you folks for allowing and recognizing the hard work that our
people do for the Department of Education, and for recognizing the outstanding work
that the team from Hana High School, Hana High and Elementary School custodial
staff has done and recognize the great work that they have done for not only their
school, but for the community as well.
One of the greatest things whenever you walk on a campus is the first impression
that you get; and it sets the tone and mindset when you walk onto a campus and it's
clean, it's, it, it just has this great feeling of, you know, people care about what they
do. And when you look at this campus and you look at the people who take care of
the campus, you know, it's a true reflection on the pride that they have in the work
that they do. And it's reflected also not only in the job that they do with their
responsibility of taking care of the campus, but also going up and beyond and being
really representatives of the school community and taking care of our kids out there
and, and our students.
So I just want to thank you folks for recognizing the custodial staff from Hana High
School and High--High and Elementary School. It's a great honor for them, and they
really did a great job of representing the Department of Education in the latest
Governor's awards, which was held last Wednesday. So I just want to thank you
again and congratulations to the crew from Hana High and Elementary School for
doing such a good job and continuing to be the guardians of Hana High and
Elementary.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Okamura.
Ms. Baisa, you want to speak?
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MS. GLADYS BAISA:
I do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please go--come forward.
MS. BAISA: Good morning, Chair and Councilmembers.
I, I had to get here in a real hurry. I had a Rotary meeting this morning, but it was
really, really important for me to be here today to congratulate Roy Katsuda on his
honor. And I want to thank you for providing a resolution for this gentleman.
I had the distinct pleasure of working with him for about thirty-seven years. I met him
when I first went to MEO, and we became very close partners and friends when I
become the Executive Director of MEO. And then twenty-two years later, I retired.
Roy was a partner in just about all of my crazy ideas at MEO, and he helped me do
many things that I could not have done without him and the support of the staff at
Hale Mahaolu.
I remember when we were desperately looking for a place to relocate Kahului Head
Start out of the termite-ridden buildings at, on Vevau Street. And Roy very, very,
without my asking, included us when he built Luana Gardens. And that was a really
big help to the children and families in Kahului. And I especially wanted to thank him
for that.
Every time we had a meeting, Hale Mahaolu very generously, with the help of
Rhonda Lincoln and I see all of Roy's staff in the, in the gallery today, would provide
food.
And whenever we did something, I could always count on Roy Katsuda to help MEO.
He hasn't only helped me, though. He has helped many nonprofits. I have never
known Roy and their staff--and his staff not to be there when help was needed. They
provide fundraising for other nonprofits, and they take really good care of our seniors.
And it's because of his initiative that we have all of the senior housing situations that
we have now. He is a wonderful leader. He's a great man. He's a good family man.
And he certainly deserves any honor that comes his way.
Roy, my best to you and it's well deserved. Aloha.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Balsa, state your name for the record, please.
MS. BAISA: My name is Gladys Balsa.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. GERALDINE CARROLL:
Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aloha.
MS. CARROLL: My name is Geraldine Carroll, and I'm here to thank my fellow coworkers
from Hana High and Elementary School to be here to be honored.
I am honored to see them here because while working at Hana School, the grounds
was always so beautiful. When May Day came around, the custodians was there to
help the children bringing in flowers and foliage. They never complain. Aloha Week,
they were there—help the children, cleaning up, not only the campus, but in the
cornmunity.
So I congratulate you.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Is there anyone else wishing to share their thoughts this morning on either of our two
ceremonial resolutions? Seeing no one else coming forward, Members, with no
objections, we will be closing testimony for ceremonial resolutions for today's
agenda.

MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered.
Mr. Clerk.
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The following ceremonial resolutions were presented.

CEREMONIAL RESOLUTIONS
RESOLUTION
NO. 06-96
CONGRATULATING ROY KATSUDA FOR BEING
NAMED A WINNER OF THE 5TH ANNUAL
HO'OKELE AWARD
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Kane, for the
adoption of the resolution. Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I would ask that the resolution be read throughout by the Clerk.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.
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VICE - CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.

don't know if I can do any better than the testifiers that came before us to speak
about Roy, but try.
He is someone that doesn't know how to give up. I have seen him over the years
pursue things that a normal mortal human being would have walked away from long
ago.
Because of his dedication to our community, because of his willingness to go far past
the extra mile to do what's necessary for our people, I would say that in the past and
now and in the future, he has made more lives--brought happiness to more people
and made more lives to where they could become productive and be proud of being
members of their family and proud of being members of our County.
He has done so much, and I know he will continue to do. I don't think this man will
ever retire. I think he will stay there until he can no longer function--and I hope that's
fifty years from now.
Again, we are very proud to bring this forward today. The award is the thing that
caught our attention and why we authored this resolution. But even without this
award, he has done so much that he has not been recognized for. I can't even think
of all the things right now that I could bring up that he has done for our community.
He should have had many, many awards. But we're very proud to be able to honor
him today.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I'm honored to support this
resolution recognizing Mr. Katsuda's achievements. Mr. Katsuda is the epitome of
the word "commitment." He has unselfishly dedicated his life towards helping people,
especially our valued kupuna.
Hale Mahaolu, as we all know, has expanded and become one of our State's
renowned senior organizations that deal with housing. And his leadership, he's
provided excellent service. His staff, it just goes without saying, he's done just a
tremendous job for that organization. And Mr. Katsuda himself has, as many of our
testifiers have stated earlier, he's got an endless amount of energy and involves
himself with many causes in our community.
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And I would like to thank his wife Betty and his family for sharing him with the
community.

And I would just like to conclude with a side note. I've always been impressed with
Mr. Katsuda's skills with numbers. And I just came across a recent biography of him.
A little known fact, Mr. Katsuda is a mathematics major. So he's a man of many
talents. He could have chosen to become a scientist or an engineer. But, you know,
with Roy being a modest unassuming individual, he chose to go into the social work
field and he's done a tremendous job.
So, Mr. Katsuda, congratulation on this well-deserved award.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
I, too, is happy to support this resolution. And I just want to say, Mr. Katsuda,
congratulation on your award.
When I first got elected on the Council, that's the first time I had dealings with
Mr. Katsuda. This is in regards to the project in Kihei, Ehiku project. And I was
happy to support Mr. Katsuda in, in regards to getting the piece of property for the
particular senior project. In fact, I think that's the first senior project I ever worked on
as far as affordable housing.
So I just want to say, Roy, you're doing a terrific job and continue to do more for the
County of Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Any further discussion? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think what was read this morning by Ms. Anderson is
very appropriate for someone like Roy--perseverance. He, in the face of sometimes
tremendous odds, has really taken it upon himself to just go that extra mile. And I
know that the Kihei site, we had other plans for that site and there were things that
sometimes happen in our lives and in his life that just led him down that path. And I
know that he salvaged the funding for that project. He did a tremendous job
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convincing the people such as ourselves and also the Mayor that it was worthy of
support, and that it was really important to the people of South Maui that we move
forward with that project.
I've worked with him through the Office on Aging or Council on Aging, also the Maui
Long-Term Care Partnership. He's just a very humble, very unassuming, but very
gracious man in everything that he does. And I don't think I've ever heard him raise
his voice to anyone even though sometimes I think he would, you know, be sorely
tempted. But I think that we're very fortunate to have a person such as him out there
in the community.
As a recipient of respite services myself through the Kupuna Care Program in caring
for my husband, the services that Hale Mahaolu provides are just irreplaceable. And
having the support of the staff and the people that work with his programs, I can see
that they really follow his example; and he really does set a very wonderful example.
So I'm very proud to know him and also to offer my support in whatever way I can
because he really gives to so many people in so many ways. And I thank him for all
of his contributions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Is there any further discussion on the motion before you, Members? Having none, all
in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I would like to ask Mr. Katsuda to come down to the podium.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
October 6, 2006
Page 12

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Katsuda, if you would please join us on the floor.
Okay, Mr. Carroll, if you would do the honor for the Members, please.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I would like now to introduce Mr. Roy Katsuda.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If we can find him.
MR. ROY KATSUDA: Thank you, Council Chair and Members--and, and Member Bob.
Thank you.
I, I was wondering where the staff was in my office, and Robin insisted that we had to
go up to the Council meeting today and I said, 'Why?" She said "We have to be
there," and I said, "Oh, oh, well, okay." She said, "I'll fill you in." And she didn't fill
me in, and I walked in and I saw my wife. And l was wondering why she was wanting
to get me out of the house this morning really early; and I dilly-dallied and she, I think
she was getting a little nervous, so I left.
You know, it's, it's, it's an honor to be honored by you folks. And I appreciate our
staff. They've always hung together and supported everything that our Board has
directed. I've had the privilege of working with really good people. I've had good
partners; and you heard from some of 'em: Gladys, Audrey, Sandy, and many other
people that are just great partners. We, we, I've had the privilege of having
wonderful presence of our Board.
And I would say that it's been almost 100 percent, in fact, it's 100 percent. We've
had to do some negotiating with the Council at times, but the Council has been very
supportive. We've had good support from the Administrations over all these years
that I've been with Hale Mahaolu. And without all of our community, all of you here,
we can't do what we do.
And it's probably my upbringing--it's, it's a little difficult for me to be honored, but I, I
do appreciate it. Thank you. And I do appreciate my wife.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, just for your information, for Mr. Katsuda who looks like it's
high school graduation day in the chambers, for those that are here for Mr. Katsuda
and those that are, are also here for honoring our Hana School people this morning,
the Chair will just inform you now that after we do the next resolution, the Chair will
be calling a recess, Members. We have a request by the honorees to have some
photo opportunities on the floor, so the Chair will grant that request. And till that time,
we will continue to do this portion of the Council's business.
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So stating that, Mr. Clerk, let us proceed with the agenda, please.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record, RESOLUTION NO. 06-96.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
RESOLUTION
NO. 06-97
CONGRATULATING THE CUSTODIAL STAFF AT
HANA HIGH AND ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ON
BEING NAMED TEAM OF THE YEAR BY THE STATE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt the
resolution. Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I would ask that the Clerk read the resolution
throughout.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
October 6, 2006
Page 14

VICE - CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.

I think we can all agree that Hana is a special place. And if Hana was a person and
you had to say where their heart is, it would be the school. The school is not only
where students graduating this year, in the past, I, myself, and my wife who spoke
earlier also graduated from the old Hana School, it's our past, it's our present, it's our
future. The school is truly the heart of the community.
Those that we are honoring today and that the State has honored have taken care of
this heart. They love not only all of Hana, but they particularly love our school and
our children. They go that extra mile. It was said about Aloha Week and May Day,
and countless other things that go on in the school. When a teacher has a birthday
for some child, or outings, or field trips, or anything, we know that these people we
are honoring today are right there, They're going that extra mile, not just working
time. They're there early to help; they're there late to help; they're there weekends to
help. They take great pride in what they do, and we are proud of them.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
I'd just to offer my congratulations and support for this resolution to recognize the
effort of Hana School's custodial staff. In general, the custodial staff at all of our
schools, they are the unsung heroes. They are the ones who have the tough jobs of
having to keep the classrooms and the bathrooms clean, and keep the--do all the
yard work and all the heavy work of moving and carrying things throughout the
school.
And as Mr. Carroll has mentioned, they sometimes have to play the role of
supervising the kids. So they learn a lot from the staff, custodial staff, as much as
they do from the teachers.
So I want to congratulate these very dedicated individuals out at Hana School.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you very much.
Having been born in Hana, I am particularly proud of the work that these folks have
done at Hana School.
And, as a former teacher, I can certainly appreciate the work that the, the staff does,
and all staffs at the schools. And I recall that when I was doing my student teaching
at the University of Hawaii, my supervising teacher who was a very down-to-earth
person, Lorraine Kaina, and if any of you know her, she's like terrific, she said to me
one day: "Forget everything that they told you about in all those classes you've been
taking for the last four years. The most important thing to remember when you get to
be a teacher at a school, you must know the school secretary and the head
custodian. Never mind the principal." And they were correct.
And I really have worked through the years with the custodial staffs at the schools
I've been at. And, you know, to, to have this honor is great because all of those
custodial staffs throughout the many schools I've taught at in the State of Hawaii,
they, they're terrific people. So this I think is an extra special honor to have our own
Hana High and Elementary School custodial staff recognized statewide.
So congratulations. And it is a great big deal.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, any further discussion? Having none, all in favor of the motion please say
"aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I would like the staff of Hana High and Elementary School to please come to the
podium.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. If you would please join us.
Okay. Mr. Carroll, if you would do the honors for the Members and introduce our
guests, please.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I now would like to ask our head custodian, Patrick Cosma, to come to the podium
and say a few words and introduce all of his fellow workers.
MR. PATRICK COSMA SR.: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. COSMA: Councilmembers, and ladies and gentlemen.
It's an honor to be here today. Two days ago, we went to the State Capital to
receive, to be honored by the Governor of our State; but, this is the County Council of
our aina. And, again, I thank--and thank Bob.
At this time, I'd like to introduce the defensive line for Hana--custodial staff of Hana
School. From the far right: Lehua Cosma, she's my wife; but, there's two gates on
campus. When we pass that gate, we are former employees. We are employees.
"Kehau" Kapoi, Mike Pavao, Mark Keaulana.
MR. MARK KEAULANA: Linebacker.
MR. COSMA: Pat Cosma Jr., and Talbert Tolentino.
MR. TOLENTINO: Nose guard.
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MR. COSMA: Being a team, to me, is awesome by working together.

I watch this meeting almost every other night on AKAKU. You, you guys just put
everything together and try solve the problems of our County--and this is what we do.
We hold what we call department meetings maybe once a month so everybody have
an input. They put 'em in, on the table, and we see what we can do from there to
make it clean, a safe learning facility for our kids of Hana and also for our Hans
School community, which is our Administration staff and everybody that works on
campus.
And we get a lot of feedback--they get; and mostly positive. And I'm so proud of
them.
And, also, I'd like to thank Ron Okamura for that beautiful words earlier part. And,
and to our Administration, Mr. Paul, Mr. Davis, and, and everybody back there who
backed us up all the way.
And once again, County Council, Bob Carroll, mahalo.
Bob, can Bob be excused? He gotta take us go lunch now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
Members, the Council shall stand in recess till 10:05 a.m.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 9:51 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 10:11 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: The regular meeting of the 6 October 2006 regular Council meeting shall
return to order.
Mr. Clerk, let us please proceed with the agenda.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, the resolution honoring the custodial staff of
Hana High and Elementary School is RESOLUTION 06-97.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with testimony on agenda items, we
have received requests from four individuals prior to the start of the meeting.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Prior to calling forward those that have requested to speak on agenda items for
today's meeting, the Chair will just inform you that we are using a lighting system at
our podium. You have three minutes at which time when you start, the green light
will be turned on. At the two-minute thirty-second mark, the yellow light will go on
indicating you have thirty seconds to conclude; and at the three-minute mark, the red
light will be turned on. At that point, if you have additional comments you wish to
make that will take a bit longer, you may return after all others have spoken, up to an
additional three minutes. State your name for the record and organization if you're
representing such.
And to all those that are remaining, the courtesy of please turning off your cell
phones. The Chair will enforce decorum in this chambers.
Stating that, Mr. Clerk, please call our first testifier.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Susan Moikeha, testifying on agenda item Committee Report
No. 06 - 117; followed by Rory Frampton.

PRESENTATION OF WRITTEN OR ORAL TESTIMONY
MS. SUSAN MOIKEHA (testifying on Committee Report No. 06-117):
Good morning, Council Chair and Members of the Council.
My name, for the record, is Susan Moikeha. I am a member of the General Plan
Advisory Committee for the update, but I am not speaking on their behalf--I'm
speaking on my own.
My comments are specific to Section 2.808.040D, numbers 1 and 2; and this is found
on page five of the Planning Committee document. And just in summary, this
amendment deals with the two phases, and it's pretty consistent with what the
Department has recommended to the Planning Committee in prior meetings. And as
I reviewed those, that report, I could see that.
Again, the first phase would deal with the review of the countywide policy plan by the
GPAC, and that begins at their first public meeting when they receive it and they
have 120 days.
Then that second phase would be initiated at a first public meeting after receiving the
Maui Island Plan, and then they would have 180 days--or we would have 180 days.
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I would ask that this body clarify with the Department either in this section or at least
on the record to avoid any future misinterpretations, as to whether or not these two
phases can overlap. Or is it as it is stated, where they're separate, where one begins
the review of the Countywide Policy Plan, and at the conclusion of that, the second
phase would begin, and that would be the Maui Island Plan.
And the question again is can they overlap? And I would ask that you clarify that for
the record, or, if needed, put it in a document.
The other thing that I would like to touch on is whether or not phase one, which is the
review of the Countywide Policy Plan, that when we are finished with it as the GPAC
and it goes on to the Planning Commission, does it have to be adopted by the
Council before we begin phase two, which is the review of the Maui Island Plan.
In my opinion on both of these, I don't see a problem with us overlapping. I mean if
the Island Plan is ready and we're at an appropriate stage in phase one or coming to
a conclusion of that, I don't see a problem with getting started on the Island Plan?
Obviously, to me the policies are that support a foundation for the upcoming of a
Maui Island Plan that includes those maps.
As far as the, having it, phase one go all the way through to the Council and get
adopted, and then we start the Maui Island Plan review, I don't agree with that. I I
don't see that impedes us starting as soon as it's ready.
,

So in my opinion, we are an advisory committee to the General Plan update, we do
not have a final authority. We're just one of a part of this entire process. And by
definition, "advisory" is one who gives an opinion of a course of action, a
recommendation. And that's what the GPAC is charged to do, and its members, and
that's to give recommendations and proposed revisions.
So I would ask that you make it really clear on the record.
And, lastly, that you also make it clear as to when we're going to start. If this is all
approved and we're moving on, can we get a tentative schedule? Can we get that on
record? And if that isn't going to work out, then continue to update that for the public
and the GPAC members on the record.
Also, make it very clear as to how far along are we on the record, again, with the
Maui Island Plan. At your last update to the Committee, it was only 10 percent along.
And it's been represented by the Department that they are not going to be ready until
spring of '07.
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So, again, if you could please have these things either addressed and in the record
or in the document.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Questions for Ms. Moikeha on her testimony, Members?
Having none, thank you very much for your testimony.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Rory Frampton, testifying, testifying on Committee Report
No. 06-117; followed by Peter Honda.
MR. RORY FRAMPTON (testifying on Committee Report No. 06-117):
Good morning, Members.
Rory Frampton, land use planning consultant.
I actually don't need to say too much more. Ms. Moikeha pointed out all the things
that I wanted to say which was basically that the, the General Plan Advisory
Committee should not have to wait for adoption of the policy document before they
can start working on the island plan. The policy document and the island plan should
follow very closely together, and they should be worked on concurrently rather than
sequentially. If it's in a sequential manner, this process could be drawn out and take
up to four years if you're following the timelines that are established in that Code.
So I would just ask that the, that the Council make it very clear that it is possible to
overlap those timelines and, in fact, that's what should be done. So it's what can be
done, and it's what should be done.
And that concludes my testimony.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Frampton.
Members, questions for our testifier? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming, Mr. Frampton.

I'm just wondering, I know you and Susan were sitting in the gallery together, so you
might know for her also. Have you folks seen the floor amendments that
Councilmember Tavares are, is offering today?
MR. FRAMPTON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. We'll get you a copy of that.
MR. FRAMPTON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any further questions, Members?
Having none, thank you very much, Mr. Frampton.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Peter Honda, testifying on Committee Report 06-117; followed
by Dick Mayer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Clerk, restate the name once more, please.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Peter Honda, H-O-N-D-A.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We shall proceed to the next request.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Dick Mayer, testifying on Committee Report No. 06-117.
MR. DICK MAYER (testifying on Committee Report No. 06-117):

Good morning, Councilmembers. Thank you, Chair.
My name is Dick Mayer. I'm testifying on the Bill 84 revisions.
I also agree with Ms. Moikeha that the timelines have to be constricted. If you really
followed the wording here, this could take four or five years before everything gets
approved; and then the community plans thereafter, also multiple years before they
can get approved. . would take, it would take more than ten years probably to get
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the General Plan and all the community plans done, and the whole decennial thing
would go. So overlapping is absolutely essential.
I also think that the—some of the other things, for example, it says that it goes from
the GPAC to the Planning Commission in thirty days. I would urge you to say also
how long it takes from the Planning Commission to go on to the Council. That is not
specified there. It could take considerable amount of time to be included as well.
There are several, several other items that I would call to your attention. I still don't
see how the Water Use and Development Plan and the General Plan are to be
integrated together. They seem to be in parallel courses and could cause potential
conflicts down the road.
On page, on, on 2.80.030G, it talks about "agency," and I'm not sure if the County
has agencies. I think you probably meant departments there, or County
departments. Something of that sort.
On the bottom of page 5, there's the word "committee", and I think it really, you,
you're really talking about "committees" because there are three GPACs, not one
GPAC committee that's making the recommendation.
Also, where it talks about the Planning Commission, the, the, the days start counting
from the first day they hold their meeting, it should be really from the receipt of the
GPACs recommendation, not when the whole--there could, there could be another
delay there. The point I'm trying to make is then the Council gets a whole year to
review both the countywide policy plan and, well, as well as the island plan, and
subsequently later on, obviously, the various community plans, that also seems to be
a long period of time. The Planning Commission gets 120 days for the policy plan,
another 180 days for the islandwide plan. If you start adding all these up, we're
talking about very, very long periods of time that various bodies will be tied up with
these plans. And I would urge you to reduce those time periods down to something
that would get the General Plan finish, complete, completed in total let's say in two
years rather than three, four, or five years as it may eventually take to do.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
Members, questions for Mr. Mayer on his testimony? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Good morning, Mr. Mayer.
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MR. MAYER: Good morning, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: On your final comment regarding shortening the times for the
Council, because we're the deliberative body and we're the ones who are going to be
charged with making the decision and not recommenda--recommending anything to
anybody, but making the decision, have you thought through your comments
regarding, you know, taking it less than a year, recognizing that we have everything
else that a Council, a deliberative body has to make decisions on, to avoid us trying
to be expeditious and then having to come back and redo things which I think that's
what we're doing now. We've come back, we're making changes because apparently
some believe that we moved a little bit too quickly. We got a little too hasty.
And even now with the testimony, here's all these things we should be considering.
And my opinion is that we may have challenges trying to get all that language
correctly done now on the floor today. So I mean just that time frame, shortening up
the person's or the body's that's going to be making the final decision on the General
Plan.
MR. MAYER: 1, I, I, it's, it's, obviously, there are arguments on both sides to go, you can go
longer, you could say we really want to do a great job; and go shorter because we
really need a new General Plan. The last one was adopted, adopted in 1991, and
this General Plan probably won't be adopted till close to 2010, according to this time
frame. And I do think over--and we, we, a concept was we should have it done every
ten years.
I see this as being a much too long a process and I don't know if there's a way of if, if
the Council recognize. This is really going to guide a lot of your other legislation.
This is the document, obviously, that makes it--you should take a longer time to do it.
On the other hand, you should have that document in front of you, not one that's now
going to be nineteen years old by the time this one gets passed.
So I would urge you, I mean you folks know your own calendars and everything else
whether you would think you can do it faster. But I think this is a very, very high
priority, maybe the number one priority thing, because the budgets and everything
else should follow the General Plan. And, therefore, I would say this, if you can do it,
recognize it as high priority, and this is something you're going to have to work
through and get done very quickly.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, just a final follow up.
And just to try and reiterate my question. If it's one year, but we know as a body that
we are charged from March 15 to May 31 to do the budget, which is by Charter, so
we already know that out of the year that we're being given here, you know, a quarter
of that time is already being taken away from us. So the de facto time we really have
is the 270 days versus--or whatever it is from that quarter of a year being taken away
for a budget review and comments.
MR. MAYER: My, my comment was that, and I've said this to others in the group here, I
think, that I think the budget should, what we do need is a Charter change there that
it should be a biennial budget so you don't have to spend three months every single
year, plus the time at pre-election where things get a little funny. And you, the
Council really shortchanges itself by having to go through the budget twice in that
two-year period. There should be a possibility for supplemental budget, perhaps a
one-month period each year, but not the three months each year.
So I think, you know, what the Council has to do is look at how do they manage the
time so that things don't take four years to get a General Plan through. That's the
problem, and that's, that's something I can't answer. You folks know your own
schedule so much better than I do. But I, I do think it's very, very critical to get the
General Plan through, you know, expeditiously.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, sir.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Further questions for Mr. Mayer, Members?
If not, thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. MAYER: Thank you all, and good luck on it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are no additional requests that were
submitted before the convening of the meeting. We do have one request that was
submitted after the convening of the meeting.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please give the individual one last opportunity, Mr. Clerk, that signed up
prior to the beginning of the meeting.
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DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Calling Peter Honda.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Seeing no one come forward, let us proceed with the request for
those that have signed up after the start of this meeting.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:
No. 06-117.

DeGray Vanderbilt, testifying on Committee Report

MR. DeGRAY VANDERBILT (testifying on Committee Report No. 06-117):
Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members of the Council.
My name is DeGray Vanderbilt. I am a member of the Molokai GPAC, but I'm here
speaking today as an individual.
I think there's been a lot of talk about working concurrently on the Policy Plan and the
Maui Island Plan which the GPAC wants to work concurrently. We're, we're a little bit
concerned about the whole process and would just like to just document if there's
some way to put it in writing that what the intention seem to be in reading the
minutes; and that is that the Molokai lslandwide Plan and the Lanai lslandwide Plan
will be our community plans.
We were comfortable with the bill as it was before in that the General Plan that the
GPAC was working on was very detailed, almost identical to the community plan, and
the community plan had to be consistent with the General Plan.
Now, the only people working on a detailed General Plan is the Maui GPAC. We just
sort of have to work on the policy statement. And we would like, we would like to,
while we're working on the policy, Maui County policy statement, we would like to
begin working on the Molokai Island Regional Community Plan, if you want to call it;
and, and just keep going along with that knowing that, of course, we can't probably
adopt the Molokai Regional Community Plan until, till the Policy Plan's adopted. But
we still want to keep that continuity of everybody working together. And there's a lot
of overlapping issues that we can work on.
And, you know, we had to wait an awful long time. This Council had our community
plan from '93 till 2001. It just sat and didn't get passed till 2001.
And Molokai was very supportive of the process on the 1991 General Plan. We, we
submitted seven, seventy-six recommendations for the Council to look at, and
thirty-six were adopted. And I think that was a real testament to the community and
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the, the organizations that worked hard on the General Plan. And we want to do the
same thing on--we don't have any traffic lights on Molokai, so I'm having trouble with
the lights, but anyway.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You got three minutes.
MR. VANDERBILT: Okay.
But, anyway, I would, we're, we're ready to go. And, and I would propose that the,
the, maybe it's the Policy Plan, the Maui Island Regional Plan, the Paia district
community plan, and then the other district community plans, then the Lanai and
Molokai regional community plans that make up the General Plan.
So, anyway, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Vanderbilt.
Members, questions to Mr. Vanderbilt regarding his testimony to you this morning?
Having none, thank you very much-MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Vanderbilt.
The Chair will offer one last opportunity to anyone else who has not given testimony
on any agenda item for today's meeting, the sixth of October. Please come forward.
We will, we will you with an opportunity to share your comments.
Seeing no one coming forward, Members, with no objection, the Chair will be closing
testimony for today's meeting.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So ordered. Mr. Clerk.

MINUTES
The minutes of the regular Council meeting held on August 22, 2006, was presented at this
time.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL
MEETING OF AUGUST 22, 2006 BE APPROVED.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt the
minutes of the regular Council meeting of 22 August 2006. Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: No discussion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, any discussion? Having none, all in favor of the motion
please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
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The following committee reports were presented.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-114

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE:

Recommending that RESOLUTION NO. 06-98 , entitled "AUTHORIZING
SETTLEMENT OF JAMES LONCZAK VS. COUNTY OF MAUI, ET AL., CIVIL
NO. 05-1-0004(1)" be ADOPTED.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO APPROVE COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-114.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt
Committee Report 06-114. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
Your Committee met on September 12, 2006, to discuss a proposed resolution to
authorize a settlement to the James Loncazk versus County of Maui case. Your
Committee approved the resolution which authorizes the Corporation Counsel's office
to settle this matter for $21,000.
This matter alleges damages due to injuries sustained at the Waiehu Golf Course.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Having none, all in favor of
the motion please say "aye."
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AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record, RESOLUTION 06-98.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-115

- COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE:

Recommending that RESOLUTION NO. 06-99 , entitled "AUTHORIZING THE
EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL ROBBINS & ASSOCIATES IN
CONSTANCE C. DEANS, ET AL. VERSUS COUNTY OF MAUI, ET AL., CIVIL
NO. 06-1-0175(1)" be ADOPTED.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MOVE TO APPROVE COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-115.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Kane, to adopt
Committee Report 06-115. Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
Your Committee met on September 12, 2006, to discuss a proposed resolution
authorizing the employment of special counsel Robbins & Associates in the
Constance C. Deans versus County of Maui case. Your Committee approved the
resolution which authorizes Robbins and Associates as special counsel for this
matter for a total compensation of $100,000.
This matter alleges the death of a Stuart R. Deans was caused due to negligent
conduct of County lifeguards at the Lahaina Aquatic Center swimming pool.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion? Having none, all in favor of the motion please say
"aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION NO. 06-99.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-116

- PARKS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE:

Recommending the following:
1.

That RESOLUTION NO. 06-100 , entitled "APPROVING THE WAIVER OF
CERTAIN PARK REQUIREMENTS FOR A PRIVATELY OWNED AND
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MAINTAINED PARK PURSUANT TO SECTION 18.16.320, MAUI COUNTY
CODE, FOR THE KILT NAHE SUBDIVISION, NAPILI, MAUI, HAWAII", be
ADOPTED; and
2.

That County Communication No. 05-327, from the Director of Parks and
Recreation, be FILED.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
MOVE FOR THE ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 06-116.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Johnson, seconded by Ms. Tavares, to adopt
Committee Report 06-116. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
Your Parks and Economic Development Committee met for a site inspection on
August 31, 2006, and met to make the decision on September 14, 2006, with regard
to the approval of the waiver of certain park requirements for the Kili Nahe Park or
the Kili Nahe Subdivision.
I would note, Mr. Chair, that one of the frustrations of your Committee is that this was
something that was done by a previous Administration. And the Committee, I
believe, was really not necessarily happy, not all Members were happy with the
configuration of this particular parcel. It was not accessible to people that are living in
the subdivision except if they went into the roadway and then accessed the park from
another area.
I also think that because the process was so far along, that I, myself, as Chair, was
very frustrated that we were not able to gather input at the beginning of the process
because I think that we may have had a different feeling about whether we wanted to
accept money or actual park dedication. But that was not the issue before us, but I
wanted to note that for the record that as a result of this and other similar situations,
we will be pursuing other legislation that addresses this issue. I think, myself,
personally, I will support it because the Members supported it; but, I'm not pleased
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with it because I think it's a park that really will not have the capability to serve as a
park.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Having none, all in favor of
the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION NO. 06-100.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
06-117

- PLANNING COMMITTEE:

Recommending that BILL NO. 53 (2006), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING CHAPTER 2.80B, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE
GENERAL PLAN AND THE COMMUNITY PLANS", be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE FOR THE ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE REPORT-WHAT COMMITTEE ARE WE?
CHAIR HOKAMA: One-one-seven, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
ONE-ONE-SEVEN.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
SECOND.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry. One-one-seven; I just flipped over the page in
the wrong place. One-one-seven.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Mateo, to adopt
Committee Report 06-117. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.
This report is reflective of the discussions that we have had since the incept, the
commencement of the GPACs, particularly the Maui GPAC, to work on our General
Plan. We ran into a, a little difficulty with interpretation of what the former Bill 84 had.
The amendments that are coming forth today, Mr. Chairman, and ones in the bill and
ones that I propo--will propose to further amend will help to clarify this process which
seems to be more complicated than any of us ever assumed it would be, be.
If it's appropriate at this time, Mr. Chair, I'll go forward with the amendments, the floor
amendments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed, please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
Dated October 5, Members, you have a memo from me which includes three
amendments.
The, the first amendment would be to clarify the elements of the General Plan;
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The second one is to include a subsection called "Nearshore ecosystem element;
and
The third is to clarify that the Maui General Plan Advisory Committee can begin
reviewing the Maui Island Plan prior to its final review of the Countywide Policy Plan,
which I think several persons who testified about--testified about it.
So if we, I think probably we should take it one at a time, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be my recommendation that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we make, do the amendments one at a time, please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
SO IF YOU LOOK DOWN AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST
PAGE, PROPOSED, I WOULD PROPOSE TO AMEND THE BILL
IN SECTION 2.80B.030(C), TO ADD THE PHRASE "SHALL
CONSTITUTE MINIMUM COMPLIANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THIS CHAPTER, AND".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that the motion, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's the motion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Mateo, to amend a
bill for an ordinance amending Chapter 2.80B, Maui County Code, as stated in the
October 5, 2006 memorandum to you, Members of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
That new section just clarifies with the elements of the plan are, and I think they're
pretty self-explanatory. We did discuss it in Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion to amend? Having one, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
We are back now to the main motion as amended. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
YES, I MOVE TO AMEND THE PROPOSED BILL BY FIRST
ADDING A NEW SECTION OF THE MAUI COUNTY
CODE, 2.80B.030(G)(3) THAT READS, "NEARSHORE
ECOSYSTEM ELEMENT. THE NEARSHORE ECOSYSTEM
ELEMENT SHALL ASSESS THE ECOSYSTEM IN THE
NEARSHORE WATERS OF THE COUNTY, AND WILL DISCUSS
PRESERVATION AND RESTORATION OF THESE WATERS";
AND, SECONDLY, THIS WOULD RENUMBER THE OTHER
EXISTING CODE AREAS.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion to amend by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Mateo,
adding a new section to the Code, 2.80B.030, subsection (G)(3), entitled "Nearshore
Ecosystem Element." Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you.
When the, we listed the elements for the General Plan, we have certain elements in
there that we think deserves special attention as they are working on the General
Plan policies. And I believe that we need to more than say, you know, protect our
natural resources. We need to get a little more specific in saying that our nearshore
waters are critical to the, not just our, our economic base here, but critical to the life
on the islands or in the islands in Maui County especially, and that we should be
paying specific attention to those nearshore waters and what impacts it.
This would also require that there is coordination between and among agencies that
have jurisdiction over various portions of things that may impact the nearshore
waters. So we just felt that we should have this specifically addressed and attention
brought to it at the, at the General Plan Advisory Committee meetings.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion to amend before you? Having none, all
in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Back to the main motion as amended. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
FOR MY LAST AMENDMENT, I MOVE TO AMEND THE
PROPOSED BILL BY ADDING IN SECTION 2,80B.050(F) TO
READ: "THE MAUI GENERAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MAY BEGIN ITS REVIEW OF THE" . . . "MAUI ISLAND PLAN
PRIOR TO ITS FINAL REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION ON
THE COUNTYWIDE POLICY PLAN, PROVIDED THAT THE MAUI
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GENERAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE SHALL MAKE ITS
FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE COUNTYWIDE POLICY
PLAN CONCURRENT WITH OR PRIOR TO ITS
RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE MAUI ISLAND PLAN."
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion to amend by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Mateo, to
add a new section in the Maui County Code, 2.80B.050, subsection F. Ms. Tavares,
further discussion?
(Councilmember Kane was excused from the meeting at 10:43 a.m.)
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank, thank you, Mr. Chair.
I think that we heard testifiers concerned about this particular area, and I believe that
this helps to clarify that even though we have time limits for each of the sub-areas,
that these can go on concurrently.
When it goes to the Planning Commissions, I believe that they should go together to
the Planning Commission. And if I were the Planning Commission, I would not
accept the policy document and start work on it until I had the Maui Island Plan, so
they can both be considered at the same time.
And I think that Molokai and Lanai will probably complete their work way ahead of the
schedule that's set forth for them, and that we should be able to move it along. The
timeline set forth in this document are the outside timelines. It does not preclude
work being completed prior to those time deadlines. So I don't believe that the
planning, this planning process will, will take to 2010. 1 believe that the Planning
Department is committed to moving this along as quickly as possible, and 1 certainly
will try to support them along the way.
And, yes, there may need to be other areas in here that need clarification. I remind
the Members that we worked on this General Plan bill originally for three years
almost in, in Committee, and going back and forth out of first reading, back to
Committee, a couple of times to try to get the best ordinance that we could out.
I believe that we did get a very good ordinance out. But in trying to implement the
ordinance, we found a few little glitches. And through these amendments, Members,
I thank you very much for participating at the Committee level. And your Committee,
Mr. Chair, I believe presents amendments here that will help to clarify and speed that
process along.
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Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion to amend? Having none, all in favor of
the motion please say "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON, MATEO,
MOLINA, PONTANILLA, TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR
CARROLL, AND CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER KANE.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
We now have a motion before you as amended.
(Councilmember Kane returned to the meeting at 10:45 am.)
The Chair will some time for Mr. Kane to be resituated.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm sorry, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No problem. I wanted all the Members present.
Okay, Members, what is before you is the main motion as amended relating to the bill
for an ordinance attached to Committee Report 06-117, regarding Maui County
Code, Chapter 2.80B.
Any further discussion, Members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
I just want to thank Planning Committee Chairwoman Charmaine Tavares and her
staff for being so responsive and making the amendments necessary, presenting
them to the Committee, and also these floor amendments. I think they really add
some substance to the changes that are being made that will, you know, move this
whole process forward and make the, the requirements more clear in everybody's
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mind so that there's not any more ambi--ambiguity attached to this General Plan
Advisory Committee process.
So I think, I think we should note the fact that the Committee was extremely
responsive in getting the changes done in a timely manner and we really appreciate
it.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Members, further discussion on the motion as amended? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, Mr. Chair, just a, perhaps a question for the Chair of the
Committee, if I may.
I note on the committee report, page nine, at the very bottom--and this is a discussion
that took place on the July 17 meeting. I just wanted to verify because I've been
spending the time to just to make sure 'cause I have a concern.
The number three on the last paragraph at the bottom where it starts, "The Planning
Director recommended the following revisions", and so I know we had several re, re,
requests by Director Foley. The third one was the, "combine the Molokai and Lanai
island plans with their community plans." And then right after that the, "Committee
deferred consideration of the matter, pending further discussion." And then I note
throughout the rest of the committee report, there is no future mention of that
particular combining of the Molokai and Lanai island plans with their community
plans.
What we're voting on today does not contain anything that would take that type of
action as recommended by the Planning Director. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. I just wanted to make sure of that.
Thank you. I have no discussion, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kane.
Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, if I could further expound on that a little
bit.
While we were in Committee discussing that particular issue that you bring up,
Mr. Kane, we had always been looking at the Molokai and Lanai island plan is
actually their community plan, and that those issues regarding the community plans
for those two islands would be handled through the community--the community plan
process.
The only island plan that was really necessary was for Maui because it contains six
community plan regions or areas.
So I think through that discussion, we may need to further clarify this down the road;
but, I think for now it is important for us to get Maui's plan finished, the island plan,
because the rest of the community plans will really hinge on that.
Molokai and Lanai have the advantage of having only one region in theirs, on their
island, so there was not, I don't think an intention to have like a Molokai Island Plan,
a Lanai Island Plan, and a Maui Island Plan before any of the community plans could
get started.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
Members, any further discussion on the motion as amended? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
And I appreciate the chair, Committee Chair's comments on expounding on this.
But I will note that when we did go through the selection process for the GPAC
members, it was under the original premise that it was for General Plan
consideration, not community plan consideration.
I recognize that community plans and general plans are distinctly different. General
Plan is just that; it's general. So it was kind of an oxymoron statement that I heard
earlier by one of the testifiers when we talk about General Plan, and then doing the
details in a General Plan. Which one is it? Is it general or is it detail? And, for me,
the distinction in a community plan, that's where you do get into the details of a
general plan. And . . . you know, for island of Molokai, as an example. There are
going to be more details that will be discussed.
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So I just make that note. My concern was that we don't change the rule of the middle
of the game and then allow people who were selected on one set of circumstances to
now be able to be a part of different set of circumstances without, to me, a necessary
review of the people who are sitting on that. The idea is when you have a General
Plan and a community plan, although you have small communities, and especially in
your community of Lanai, Mr. Chair, you still want to engage as many people as
possible to, to participate in the various components of the process. And to have the
same people, the same nine people or thirteen people or whatever it is, to do two
phases of that process, I think doesn't provide the optimal opportunity for people in
the communities to engage themselves in this process.
So I just wanted to make that note. The, the issue has been responded to. It's not
part of this that we're voting on, therefore, I, I will move forward with my vote on this.
If it had that, I would have made a point to ask for a consideration for us to amend
because we're—that's how far along we are. But we're not there, so.
Thank you for the additional comments.
CHAR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, further discussion on the motion as amended?
The Chair would just give a short comment to the Members.
First, I, too, appreciate the dedication and hard work that all of you have put forth
through our Planning Committee headed by Ms. Tavares.
I would say I am in general agreement with the statements that have been shared
this morning that the General Plan for Lanai's participation, and looking at it from an
island perspective, is the appropriate approach.
This does not undermine the comment from Mr. Kane that the next phase of the
community plan and those that get appointed will be doing the more specific work of
the details that imple--help implements the General Plan. And I say that so that there
is no confusion out there that we're trying to do community planning through the
General Plan. That is not this Council's intent at all.
And I will just share, since we do have the Director of our Department of Planning
with us, and one of his planners, all I can share with you is that we, I would ask the
Department to move forward as quickly as possible.
The members on the Lanai General Plan Advisory Committee are frustrated that they
cannot move forward and do the work they volunteered to do so. And for many of
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them, they are not neophytes. We have very experienced community participants in
assisting the island moving forward. And I'm sure Molokai has people with
experience. And Maui, we have a great group of people anticipating to get to the
meat and potatoes of the issues.
So stating that, Members, are you ready for the vote on the motion as amended? All
in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is adopted.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record, BILL NO. 53 (2006).
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are no further committee reports. Shall
we proceed with communications?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
The following County Communications were presented.

COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS
NO. 06-242 - KALBERT K. YOUNG, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE,
(dated September 8, 2006)
Pursuant to Ordinance No. 3396, informing of the sale of $25,190,000 of County of
Maui General Obligation Bonds, 2006 Series B and 2006 Series C, dated as of
September 21, 2006.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. CHAIR, MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-242.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to file County
Communication 06-242. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, no further discussion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Members, any discussion on the motion? Having none, all in favor of the motion
please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried.
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 06-243 - G. RIKI HOKAMA, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated September 28, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "DESIGNATING THE DIRECTOR OF
PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT AS THE AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE TO GRANT PERMISSION TO INSTALL UTILITY POLES
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PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 12.16, MAUI COUNTY CODE", and informing that he will
entertain the following motions:
1.

A motion to WAIVE the requirement of committee referral and
recommendation of the proposed resolution, pursuant to Section 5(H) of the
Rules of the Council;

2.

A motion to ADOPT the proposed resolution; and

3.

A motion to FILE this communication.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR, I MOVE TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENT OF
COMMITTEE REFERRAL AND RECOMMENDATION FOR THE
PROPOSED RESOLUTION TRANSMITTED BY COUNTY
COMMUNICATION NO. 06-243.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Carroll, to waive
the requirement of committee referral, pursuant to Section 5(H) of the Rules of the
Council. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Chair. The proposed, the purpose of the proposed
resolution is to renew the Council authorization to the Director of Public Works and
Environmental Management to approve routine installation of utility poles in cases
where the number of poles to be installed does not exceed six, and the height of
such poles does not exceed the height of the existing pole.
The Council previously granted this authority to the Director since 2000 by Resolution
No. 00-100 for a two-year period, and by Resolution No. 03-23 for another two-year
period. The authority expired on February 7, 2005. This proposed resolution would
extend the same authority to the Director for another two years, during which time I
anticipate that a more permanent approach to this situation can be formulated.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

Further discussion, Members, on the motion to waive? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm not going to support waiving the rules because I don't
support the premise. I think this work should be done in Committee.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You just want us to speak to the waiver of the rules at
the moment, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, 'cause if this motion does not move forward, then-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we will, we will not be taking up the matter of the resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could I ask a question of Corp. Counsel at this point,
Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It says that the resolution giving the Council's authority
to the Director of Public Works, the most recent resolution expired as of February '05.
So my question to Corp, Counsel is, are, would that then make everything that has
been done in regards to installation of utility poles since that date without Council
authority invalid, or at least subject to question?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Moto.
CORPORATION COUNSEL BRIAN MOTO: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
First of all, let me say I don't know how many or whether any utility poles were
approved for emplacement in County rights-of-way since the expiration of the last
resolution.
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My assumption is that the expiration of the previous resolution was sort of
overlooked. Somehow it fell through the cracks and no one realized, "Oh, but, you
know, my God, we have to renew this thing. It's only good for two years."
I would have to take a look as to the circumstances of any approvals granted in the
interim.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I bring this up because I do know that there have
been utility poles approved. And, as a matter of fact, one of the issues I have a great
concern about, two of them that I'm cognizant of, and there may be others, but just
off the top of my head memory-wise, we had the Lower Kimo Road issue about the
utility poles that were put in that obstructed view planes of mauka residents
and—permanently.
And we also had utility poles erected across Maliko Gulch for the purpose of hooking
up electricity to the Hamakuapoko wells. And this was done after we passed our
resolution.
So I have a problem with waiving the rules because I think we need to discuss this in
Committee. It's not just a simple matter. It affects people's lives, and I, I'm sorry that
I can't support the waiver.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
May I ask a question of Mr. Miyamoto, the Deputy Director.
Good morning, Mr. Miyamoto. Do you have any information as to any poles that
were authorized under, you know, under six poles that were authorized from the time
of the expiration of February 7, 2005 till now? Do you have that information available
to us today?
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT:
Mr. Chair, if I may respond?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Miyamoto.
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: In
checking with the Director prior to this meeting, I, I spoke with Milton and he did not
know offhand. We'd have to do a little bit more research as this is not a, a function
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that is very frequently exercised. I think he mentioned somewhere in his last report, I
think he mentioned there were only two instances over I think it was a six-month
period at which this authority was exercised. But I'd have to do a little bit more
research.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, based on the comments from the Deputy Director, we don't have any
written documentation as to what transpired from February 7, 2005 until now. For
me, I cannot support the waiver of referral to Committee as well.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Any further discussion on the motion before you? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, is there a, a particular rush for us ruling on or
coming to a decision here on the floor?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, there is no rush as the Chair is knowledgeable of.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I, I would, I would then support go, it going to
Committee, actually, so we can get a thorough discussion of this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
The Chair is going to call a short recess till eleven-o-five.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 11:02 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 11:05 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Council meeting for 6 October 2006 shall reconvene.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
I'd just like to make a comment in regards to one of the applications in regards to
service location up in Kula that had come through Council previously for approval. I, I
don't know if there were any between February 2006 to that particular date back to
September 2006.
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What we have here this morning is a report showing all of the poles that were
installed in 2005.
So, if, at this time, if there's no rush by the Department and if I can have some
comments by the Department in regards to how urgent this thing is, then I'll move
forward on a recommendation or removal of the motion.
So, at this time, I would like to have the Department comment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Miyamoto, are you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: We cannot discuss the substance of the issue until we pass by
the waiver for discussion. If we want to get into the substance, we need to have that
waiver passed. Otherwise, I think we should make that consideration first, with all
due respect, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Your point is duly noted.
Mr. Pontanilla, do you feel it's critical to have the discussion of the question asked
before the Chair makes a ruling on, on proceeding?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
NO. IF THIS IS NOT A PRESSING ISSUE, THEN I WOULD
WITHDRAW THE MOTION--WAIVER.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Chair accepts the withdrawal of the motion to waive the
requirement.
Mr. Clerk, proceed.
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 06-243 WAS REFERRED
TO THE PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE LATER IN THE
MEETING.
(See page 53.)
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NO. 06-244 - KALBERT YOUNG, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE,
(dated September 21, 2006)
In compliance with Hawaii Revised Statutes, Section 47C-3, as amended by
Act 64/1983, transmitting a Supplemental Summary of Total Funded Indebtedness
Outstanding and Unpaid as of August 31, 2006.
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-244 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
NO. 06-245 - LLOYD Y. GINOZA, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated September 29, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
FISCAL YEAR 2007 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO
ESTIMATED REVENUES, THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, TOTAL OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS,
AND TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS)".
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-245 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
NO. 06-246 - LLOYD Y. GINOZA, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated September 29, 2006)
Transmitting the following:
1.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE LAHAINA WASTEWATER
PUMP STATION NO. 1 REPLACEMENT";

2.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE LAHAINA-CONSENT
DECREE SEWER REHABILITATION";
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3.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE COUNTYWIDE
WASTEWATER PUMP STATIONS RENOVATIONS";
A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE LAHAINA WASTEWATER
PUMP STATION NO. 4 MODIFICATIONS";

5.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE CENTRAL-CONSENT
DECREE SEWER REHABILITATION";

6.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE KIHEI-CONSENT DECREE
SEWER REHABILITATION";

7

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE WAILUKU-KAHULUI
WASTEWATER RECLAMATION FACILITY ELECTRICAL/SOLIDS
UPGRADE"; and

8.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE CENTRAL OPERATIONS
AND MAINTENANCE FACILITY".

The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-246 be referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.
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NO. 06-247 - MICHAEL W. FOLEY, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING,
(dated August 31, 2006)
Relating to Community Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning applications filed by
Dale Castleton for the proposed Hula Girl Nursery, transmitting pertinent documents
and the following:
1.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE
KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN AND LAND USE MAP FROM
MULTI-FAMILY TO BUSINESS/COMMERCIAL FOR PROPERTY SITUATED
AT MAKENA, MAUI, HAWAII"; and

2.

A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING
FROM A-1 APARTMENT DISTRICT TO B-2 COMMUNITY BUSINESS
DISTRICT (CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KIHEI,
MAUI, HAWAII".

The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-247 be referred to the Land Use Committee.
NO. 06-248 - MICHAEL W. FOLEY, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING,
(dated September 14, 2006)
Transmitted a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING
EDWIN YOUNG A CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR THE OPERATION OF NAHIKU
MARKET PLACE, FKA BLUE POOL MARKET PLACE, WITHIN THE COUNTY
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT NAHIKU
HOMESTEAD, HANA, MAUI, HAWAII", and relevant documents.
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-248 be referred to the Land Use Committee.
NO. 06-249 - RIKI HOKAMA, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated September 29, 2006)
In accordance with Ordinance No. 3272 pertaining to the Waiolani Pikake
Subdivision, transmitting information relating to traffic counts and a reference map.
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-249 be referred to the Land Use Committee.
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NO. 06-250 - RIKI HOKAMA, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated September 27, 2006)
Relating to parking standards for residential mixed use developments, transmitting a
draft resolution entitled "REFERRING A BILL PERTAINING TO OFF-STREET
PARKING TO THE LANAI, MAUI, AND MOLOKAI PLANNING COMMISSIONS".
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-250 be referred to the Planning Committee.
NO. 06-251

MICHAEL J. MOLINA, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated September 13, 2006)

Transmitting a copy of a letter dated August 30, 2006, from the Director of Public
Works and Environmental Management, relating to the left turn lane on Makawao
Avenue onto Haleakala Highway.
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-251 be referred to the Public Works Committee.
NO. 06-252 - MILTON M. ARAKAWA, A.I.C.P., DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS
AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, (dated September 11, 2006)
Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING THE GRANTING OF
NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT ON COUNTY OF MAUI REAL PROPERTY
SITUATED AT WAHIKULI, LAHAINA, MAUI, HAWAII, TO THE WILLIAM H.
MCFARLAND AND ROSE-MARIE MCFARLAND FAMILY TRUST, FOR PRIVATE
SEWER LINE PURPOSES".
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-252 be referred to the Public Works Committee.
NO. 06-253 - GEORGE Y. TENGAN, DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY,
(dated September 7, 2006)
Transmitting copies of the Department of Water Supply's Monthly Source Report and
Groundwater Use Report for the month ended August 2006.
The Deputy County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County
Communication No. 06-253 be referred to the Water Resources Committee.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: And, and, excuse me, Mr. Chairman, regarding COUNTY
COMMUNICATION NO. 06-243, that would be referred to your?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Public Works Committee.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Public Works Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, you have the referral to the various standing
committees of the Council. Any considerations for the Chair to consider at this time?
Having none, those County Communications shall be referred to the various Council
standing committees as so noted and stated by the Clerk.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So ordered.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are no further communications. Shall we
proceed with ordinances?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
The following bill for an ordinance was presented.

ORDINANCE
ORDINANCE NO,
BILL NO. 52 (2006)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
SECTION 10.44.030, MAUI COUNTY CODE,
TO ESTABLISH A FOUR-WAY STOP AT
MARKET STREET AND VINEYARD STREET
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO PASS ON SECOND AND FINAL READING BILL NO. 52.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina, to pass
Bill 52 on second and final reading. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
The adoption of this bill will amend the Maui County Code allowing the permanent
establishment of a four-way stop at Market Street and Vineyard Street in Wailuku.
The interim four-way stop measure has been, was demonstrated, increased safety of
pedestrians with improved opportunities to cross the roadway and is consistent with
future plans for the beautification of Market Street in a more pedestrian-friendly
environment.
I urge the Members to support this bill that will enhance pedestrian safety to this
traditional Wailuku neighborhood intersection.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Any further discussion on the motion, Members? Having none, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON,
KANE, MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA,
TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR
HOKAMA.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no."
NOES:

NONE.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is passed. Bill 52 passes second and final reading, nine-zero.
Mr. Clerk.
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DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there is no further scheduled business.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, we are under announcements as part of today's agenda. Mr Mateo, do
you have any announcements for.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Members of the Council offered various announcements.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business before the Council, the regular meeting of October 6, 2006,
was adjourned by the Chair at 11:23 a.m.
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